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PBIVATE RESIDENTS.
Barker James, Elder bank
Blackledge James, Glenburn, Lane bottom
Blomley Thomas Wm. Henshaw cottage
Cockcroft John Arthur, Birks house
Craven John. Holly bank
Dash Rev. Gilbert (Primitive Methodist),

Stone manse
Fielden Josiah, Inchfield 
Helliwell Mrs. Holly bank 
Lord Thomas, Monas terrace 
McGregor Bobert L.R.C.P. & S.Edin.

Rochdale road 
McLeod Bev. Bonald Fisher (vicar), The

Vicarage
Owen Herbert, Dean Royd villas 
Pilling T. L. Clough side 
Sutcliffe Thomas, Inchfield villa 
Wimbush Rev. F. (United Methodist), 

Manse, Stones
COMMERCIAL.

Anthony Albert Edwd. joiner, Clough mill 
Bottoms Mill Co. Limited, cotton waste

spinners, Rochdale road 
Bridge End Equitable Progressionists' 

Co-operative Society Limited (James 
Sutcliffe, sec.), Rochdale r6ad 

Brown Robert Ingham, butcher, 788 Roch­ 
dale road

Brown Wm. Hy. plumber, 584 Rochdale rd 
Euckley Abraham, Waggon & Horses P.H

780 Rochdale road
Butterworth Henry, farmer, Inchfield 
Calderdale Co-operative Clog Sundrie: 

Manufacturing Society Limited (John 
Fletcher, sec.), Alma st. Rochdale road 

Cockcroft John & Sons Ltd. cotton manu­ 
facturers, Bilks mill. T N 185 

Crabtree & Cryer, manufacturing chemists
Steanor bottom

Crabtree Ormerod, farmer, Hollingworth 
Crabtree Tom, hair dresser, 290 Rochdale

road, Gauxholme
Cropper John Edward, butcher, 576 Roch­ 

dale road 
Crowther Christiana (Mrs.), shopkeeper

645 Rochdale road
Crowther Crossley, shopkeeper, 754 Roch­ 

dale road 
Currie James Ltd. dyers, Spring mill

T N 205
Dawson Arthur, farmer, Height houses 
Dean William, butcher, 632 Rochdale road 
Dobson Walter, refreshment rooms, 590

Rochdale road
Duckworth James Limited, grocers, 554 

Rochdale road

WALSDEN.
Dugdale Cello & Co. picker manufacturers,

Copperas house. T N 130 
Dugdale Charles (exors. of), cotton spin­ 

ners, Wood Bottom mill. T N 54 
Fielden Howorth Limited, picker makers,

Clough mill. T N 25 
Fielden Robert & Sons Limited, picker

makers, Inchfield. T N 36 
Fielden Fred, Bird in Hand P.H. Roch­ 

dale road
Fielden Fred, Sun P.H. 835 Rochdale rd 
Fielden Josiah, boot ma. 574 Rochdale rd 
Fielden Joshua, shopkpr. 937 Rochdale rd 
Fielden Nancy Etta (Mrs.), draper, 776

Rochdale road 
Fielden Tom, fried fish dealer, 780 Roch-

dile road
Fielden Walter, painter, Rochdale road 
Greenhalgh Henry, dyer, Copperas House

dye works 
Greenwood Frank, shopkeeper, 1 Copperas

House terrace 
Halstead J. H. & Sons, wheelwrights,

Rochdale road 
Halstead Annie (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 483a,

Rochdale road
Halstead John Henry, farmer, Henshaw 
Hartley Richard, builder, 667 Rochdale rd 
Hartley William, farmer, Scout 
Helliwell Greenwood, greengrocer, 588

Rochdale road
Highley Richard, shopkeeper, 14 Square rd 
Hirst Arthur, shopkeeper, 642 Rochdale rd 
Hollinrake Frank, hair drssr. Rochdale rd 
Hollinrake William, draper, 2 Quebec st 
Howorth Fielden, Cross Keys P.H. 649

Rochdale road
Hoyle J. H. Ltd. cotton mfrs. Hollins mill 
Jackson Arthur, stationer, Post office, 643

Rochdale road. T N 160 
Kershaw John William, Butchers' Arms

P.H. 772 Rochdale road 
King?bury Fred, draper, 557 Rochdale rd 
Knowlwood Quarries Ltd. Knowlwood 
Law Enoch, coal merchant,947 Rochdale rd 
Lawton Arth. hair drssr. 578 Rochdale rd 
Lello John, picker manufacturer, see Dug­ 

dale Lello & Co
Livsey Frank, fried fish shop, 545a, Roch­ 

dale road
Lord Jane & Betsey (Misses), confec­ 

tioners, 562 Rochdale road 
Lord John, clothier, 641 Rochdale road 
Lumb Alice (Miss), shopkpr. 55 Hollins rd 
McGregor Robt. L.R.C.P. & S., L.R.F.P.S. 

Glas. physician & surgeon, Rochdale rd

Manchester & Liverpool District Banking 
Co. Lll. (sub-branch) (open wed. & 
fri. 10 a.m. to 12.30 p.m.), Rochdale 
road; draw on London office, 75 Corn- 
hill E C 3

Marshall Harry, builder, 146 Hollins road 
Metcalfe Edmund, fried fish dealer, 594

Rochdale road
Midgley Wilson, fried fish dlr.Rochdale rd 
Mitchell James, coal mer. Station yard 
Ogden Leonard George, chemist, 572

Rochdale road
Prestwich A. & Co. Ltd. cotton manufac­ 

turers, Dean Royd mills 
Ramm John Thomas, fried fish dealer,

748 Rochdale road 
Ramsden Print Works Ltd. calico printers.

T N 21
Smith Alice, confectioner, 375 Rochdale rd 
Smith George Seymour, farmer, Moorhey 
Smith Thomas, beer retailer, 12 Square rd 
Southwell Walter, shopkpr. 159 Hollins rd 
Speak Joseph, decorator, Rochdale road 
Stansfield Dorothy (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 592

Rochdale road
Stansfield Richard, plumber, 18 Square rd 
Starkie John & Sons, reed makers,Smithy

Holme mill. T N 88
Studd George E. baker, 521 Rochdale road 
Stuttard Matthew & Brothers Ltd. sizers,

Copperas House mill. T N 45 
Sutcliffe & Greenwood, cotton manufac- 

| turers, Hollins Bottom mill. T N 19 
J Sutcliffe Frank, grocer, 774 Rochdale road 
Sutcliffe Walter, farmer, Clough farm 
Taylor Ormerod & Son Ltd. manufacturing 

! chemists, Rochdale road. T N Little- 
borough 17

; Taylor William, Railway P.H. 545 Roch­ 
dale road 

Turner E. T. & Bros, cotton waste
dealers, Winterbutlee mill 

Uttley Herbert, Hollins inn 
Walsden Co-operative Society Ltd. (Frank

Lord, sec.), Hollins; & branches 
Walsden Liberal Club (Elliot Fielding,

sec.), Rochdale road 
Walsden Mill (1920) Ltd. cotton spinners,

Alma road. T N 13
Westall Richard, Bell's Arms P.H. Roch­ 

dale road
Wild Frederick, motor engineer, 563 Roch­ 

dale road
Wood Bertha (Mrs.), draper, 647 Roch­ 

dale road 
Yorkshire Penny Bank, School house

TOLLIKGTON HIGHER END, see Ramsbottom. TONGE, see Middletoa
TONGE-CUM-BREIGHTMET, now incorporated in the borough of Bolton, which sea

TONGE MOOR, see Bolton. TOPPINGS, see Turton.
TORKINGTON, see Stockport. TOBBISHOLME, see Morecambe.

TORVER is a small township and a parish, formed in 
1866 from the civil parish of Ulversion, with a station on the 
London, Midland and Scottish railway, 12 miles by road and 
21 by rail north from that town, 7 north-east from Broughton, 
7 south-west from Hawkshead and 12 from Ambleside, in the 
Lonsdale division of the county, petty sessional division of 
Hawkshead, hundred of Lonsdale (north of the Sands), union 
of Ulverston, county court district of Ambleside, rural deanery 
of Ulverston, archdeaconry of Furness and diocese of Carlisle. 
The river Torver runs through the village, and is here crossed 
by a stone bridge of one arch. The parish borders on the 
Coniston Water, which is 1 mile distant from the church, and 
the whole district abounds in beautiful scenery. This is the 
best station to alight at for the ascent of the " Old Man of 
Couifcton." The church of St. Luke, a building of native 
slate-stone, with red sandstone facings in the Early English 
etyle, was rebuilt in 1884 at a cost of £1,400, and consists of 
chancel, nave, south porch and low central tower containing 
one bell, cast in 1730: the font is supposed to be of pre- 
Beformation date: there are about 150 sittings. The register 
of baptisms and burials dates regularly from the year 1661 
and of marriages from 1791; there are older registers but they 
ar-3 imperfect. A faculty for the consecration of the church and 
interment of the dead, bearing ihe signature of Archbishop 
CranmcT, and dated at Lambeth, July 23rd, 1588, is kept with

* _ . •__l__l__—i. fT*V» « 1 •«•!«-» f* nr«% e*

declared a rectory November 20, 1866, net yearly value £205, 
with glebe and residence, in the gift of the Peache trustees, 
and held since 1916 by the Rev. John Benjamin Panes. There 
is a Baptist chapel at SUNNYBANK. The manor, which is 
united with Muchland, belongs to the Crown. The principal 
landowners are the trustees of the Barratt estate and the 
resident yeomen. The soil is gravel; subsoil, stone and slate. 
The land is principally pasture. The area is 3,815 acres of 
land, a great portion consisting of rocks and waste, and 279 
of water; rateable value, £1,384; the population of the civil 
parish in 1921 was 205 and of the ecclesiastical parish in 
1911, 203. 

Sexton, James Grundy.
Post Office. Thomas Wilson, sub-postmaster. Letters through 

Coniston, 2£ miles distant, which is the nearest money order 
& telegraph office. Delivery of telegrams by Railway Co. 
ut station only

Public Elementary School (mixed), rebuilt in 1873 at the 
expense of the inhabitants, & enlarged in 1913; with an 
endowment of £13 a year derived from funds left in 1777 
by John Fleming esq. for the free education of 3 poor 
children of this parish; it is now in the hands of trustees, 
& will hold 56 children; Miss Jane Copsey, head mistress

Railway Station, Thomas Wilson, station master
other parish papers in an ancient chest. The living was Carrier to Ulverston. Joseph Jackson, every wed. & fri

Panes Rev. John Benjamin (rector), The
Rectory

Ransome Miss, Elm hall 
Walker Mrs. Cragg cottage

COMMERCIAL.
Barr Joseph, farmer
Broughton Moor Slate Quarries Syndicate

(H. Mellon, manager) 
Brown Percy, beer retailer

Charnley Rd. & Sons, hammer shaft mas Jopson Robert, farmer, Greenrigg 
Coward WTkinson, farmer, Hoathwaite I Prickett Richard Wilson, shopkeeper 
Creishton Jackson, farmer, Beckstones jReadhead William, fanner, Hazel hall 
Dickinson Edwd.frmr. Brocklebank Ground, Ward Joseph, farmer, Oxness
Dickinson Jas. S. farmer, Brackenbarrow 
Dickinson Thomas, farmer, The Crook 
Fryer Marmaduke, farmer, Park Ground 
Ga«kell James, farmer, The Larches 
Ho we Albert Edward, Church House inn 
Jackson Joseph, carrier, Blawith

Wilson Henry & Wm. yeomen, Bank end 
Wilson Elizh. (Mrs.), fanner, Souterstead 
Wilson Wm. assistant overseer, Bank end 
Wilson William, farmer, High Stile 
Wood Lawrence, farmer, Greaves Ground

TOTTING<TON parish, formerly extending from 4 to 6 
miles from Bury, haa, under tho provisions of the Local 
Government Act. 1804. boon .reconstituted the parts of the 
municipal boroueh of Bury and Urban district of Ramsbottom
being to tho.- (> civil parishes. Tottington has two

stations on the Bury and Tottington branch of the London, 
Midland and Scottish railway, and is in the parliamentary 
boroueh of Bury, hundred of S;ilford, union, county court 
district, petty sessional division and rural dranery of Bury, 
archdeaconry of Rochdale and dioceso of Manchester. This
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parish is governed by an Urban District Council of fifteen 
membera, formed Feb. 14, 1899, under the provisions of the 
previously mentioned Act. St. Anne's is a district chapelry 
formed out of Bury in 1841; the church, consecrated in 1799 
and repaired in 1884, is a small and plain edifice of stone 
with one bell: the interior was repewed in 1868 and a new 
organ erected: there are 500 sittings, of which 422 are free. 
The register of baptisms dates from 1799 and of marriages 
from 1862. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £340, 
with residence, in the gift of the rector of Bury, and held 
since 1906 by the Rev. Henry Reeder, of St. Bees. St. John's 
Free Church of England is a plain stone building, erected in 
1867, and has a tower with spire containing one bell: there 
are sittings for 400 persons, of which 200 are free; Rev. 
George H. Spencer, minister. Green Mount Congregational 
chapel, erected in 1867 at a cost of about £4,000, is a stone 
building in the Gothic style, and has sittings for 600 persons. 
The Wesleyan Methodist chapel was erected in 1905 at a cost 
of £6,000, and has 500 sittings. The Roman Catholic Home, 
Holly Mount (a certified Poor Law school for girls), is in 
connection with the Roman Catholic Protection and Rescue 
Society; it was opened Sept 21, 1888. Considerable additions 
have been made to the original building and it is now avail­ 
able for 260 children. The Home is in the charge of the 
Sisters of Charity of Jesus and Mary. There are extensive
 works for cotton spinning and manufacturing calico and 
delaine bleaching and printing and a factory for soap for the 
use of printers and manufacturers. In the 17th century the 
manor of Tottington was divided for local purposes into two 
townships, as at present constituted. The royal manor of 
Tottington was in the successive possession of the houses of 
Laci (Earls of Lincoln) and Plantagenet (Dukes of Lancaster), 
and was the seat of the superior court, to which the manors 
of Bury, Middleton, Chatterton and Alkrington owed suit and 
service: this manor was given to General Monk, Duke of 
Albemarle, by Charles II. as a partial reward for the services 
rendered by him to the house of Stuart: the Albemarle 
possessions vested in Elizabeth, Duchess of Buccleuch (d. Nov. 
21, 1827), from whom the manor of Tottington lineal'y 
descended to Lord Henry James Scott Montagu, 2nd baron 
Montagu of Boughton, who died 30th Oct. 1845, when that 
title became extinct, but was revived in 1885 in favour of Lord 
Henry John Douglas Scott Montagu, created Baron Montagu, of 
Beaulieu, Hants. The principal landowners are the Duke of 
Buccleuch and Queensberry E.T. who is lord of the manor of 
Tottington, C. Royds esq. and the trustees of the late T. S. 
Potter. The soil is generally heavy; subsoil, stone. The chief 
crops are hay. The area of the civil parish and Urban 
District ie 2,617 acres of land and 26 of water; rateable value, 
£25,174; the population in 1921 was 6,760.

The population of the ecclesiastical district of St. Anne in 
1911 was 5,816.

The population of the wards in 1921 was: Chapel, 1,356; 
Church, 988; Groenmount, 1,523; Hawkshaw, 597; Walshaw, 
2,296.

WALSHAW or Walshaw Lane, about a mile west, forms a
 ward in Tottington Urban District; it was formed into an 
ecclesiastical parish in 1889. Christ Church, also called the 
" Jesse Haworth Memorial Church," completed in 1891, is a 
cruciform structure of native stone in the Decorated Gothic 
style, consisting of chancel, nave, transepts, south porch and 
a tower on the south-east with spire and one bell: there are 
memorial windows to Dennis and Mary Haworth, one erected 
by the. Rev. J. G. Haworth to James and Nancy Haworth and 
two others to members of the Haworth family, besides one to 
John Whitehead: the church was built and endowed by Miss 
Haworth and the Rev. John Gorell Haworth, at a joint cost 
of £25,000, as a memorial to Jesse Haworth esq. of Walshaw, 
and has 516 sittings. The register datea from the year 1892. 
The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £380, in the eift 
of Mrs. Hibbert, and held since 1916 by the Rev. John Day 
Talbot B.A.B.U.I. In the parish are two factories, a bleach­ 
ing, dyeing and printing works, a few gentlemen's residences 
and many cottages. There is also a Wesleyan Methodist chapel 
and a Mission room. The population of the ecclesiastical 
district in 1911 was 1,837.
Post, M. 0., T. & T. E. D. Office, 12 Market street, Totting­ 

ton. William Ellis Robinson, sub-postmaster. Letters from 
Bury

Town Sub-Post & M. 0. Office, 34 Bank street, Walshaw.  
Arthur Scarth, sub-postmaster. Letters arrive from Bury. 
Nearest telegraph office, Tottington, three-quarters of a mile 
distant

Post Office, Greenmount, Holcombe road. Mrs. Margaret Ann 
Smith, snb-postmistress. Letters arrive from Bury. Totting^ 
ton is the nearest money order & telegraph office

URB1N DISTRICT COUNCIL.
Meets at the Town hall, Market street, on the 2nd Wednesday 

in every month at 8 p.m.
Members.

Chairman, John R Warburton J.P. 
Vice-Chairman, Edward Lomax.

Greenmount Ward. 
George Swainston 
John Tye 
Roger Wood

Hawkshaw Ward. 
Robert Anderson Duckworth 
Cyrus Smith

Chapel Ward. 
Fred Lomax 
Patrick Wallace 
Hamblet Williams

Church Ward. 
Daniel Clarkson 
Jonathan Tsherwood 
J. 0. Pilklngton John R. Warburton 

Walshaw Ward.
T. F. MoyseGeorge Edward Austin 

Edward Lomax |

Officers.
Clerk, Harold Holt. Town hall, Market street 
Treasurer, Willam A. Brown, Lancashire & Yorkshire Bank

Ltd. Bury 
Medical Officer of Health, Gilbert Bailey M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P.

Ainsworth hall, Ainsworth
Surveyor & Sanitary Inspector, Lawrence Kenyon, 88 Market st 
Collector, George Ormerod, Town hall, Market street

TOTTINGTON SUB-COMMITTEE OF LANCASHIRE LOCAL
OLD AGE PENSION COMMITTEE. 

The Sub-District comprises Tottington & Ainsworth 
Meetings are held at the Town hall offices on 3rd tuesday in

each month
Chairman, Thomas H. Naylor, Nabbs house, Greenmount 
Clerk, Charles Kirkpatrick, Town hall, Market street 
Pension Officer, E. G. Nuttall, customs & excise office, Man­ 

chester roa4, Bury

County Police Station, 2 Kirklees street, James McCulloch, 
sergeant, & 6 constables

PUBLIC OFFICERS. 
Assistant Overseer far the Township of Tottington, Harold

Holt, Town hall, Market street 
Collector of Poor Rate* for the Township of Tottington, George

Ormerod, Town hall, Market street 
Registrar of Births & Deaths for Tottington Sub-District, Bury

District, James William Horrocks, 47 Market street 
Believing Officer for Tottington District, Bury Union, Almor»

Holding, 19 Chapel street

PUBLIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS. 
TOTTINGTON & AINSWORTH ELEMENTARY EDUCATION

SUB-COMMITTEE OF THE LANCASHIRE EDUCATION
COMMITTEE.

The Sub-Committee of 12 members was formed in Sept. 1903. 
Meetings are held at the Town hall, Market street, on the last

monday in the month at 7.30 p.m.
Chairman, Thomas Henry Naylor, Nabbs house, Greenmount 
Clerk, Ernest J. Mills M.A., O.B.E. Town hall, Market street 
St. Anne's, for 346 children; Edwin D. Speed, master 
Walshaw, for 294 children; T. F. Moyse, master; Mrs. Mary

Hamilton, mistress (infants')
St. John's, for 226 children; Mrs. Catherine M. Crawshaw, mist 
Greenmount, for 346 children; James Collinge, master 
Affetside, for 140 children; Miss Elizabeth Ramsden, mistress 
Ainsworth, for 240 children; Henry Thompson, master; Miss

Hannah Haslam, infants' mistress
Hawkshaw lane, for 264 children; Thomas Beckett, master 
Weslevan, erected in 1868, at a cost of about £3,000, for 4491

children; J. L. Rhodes, master 
Sisters of Charity Roman Catholic Convent School, Claremont;

Rev. Mother Ellen Casey (lady superior)

RAILWAY STATIONS.
Tottington, Herbert Parker, station master 
Greenmount, James 8. Brierley, station master

CONVEYANCE.
Bury Corporation Tramways, from Bury every 10 minutes & 

vice versa, daily

TOTTINGTON. 

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.
Adamson William, 265 Ho'combe road,

Greenmount. T N 822 
Ashworth Rawden, 369 Holcombe road 
Barnes John J. Whitebirk, Greenmonnt 
Barnicott Henry, Sunny bank, Sunny

bower. T X 362
Broome Alfred, Dowry house, Greenmount 
Brown George, 17 Sunny bower 
Brown Jam»s. 155 Market street 
Brnnskill John William, 175 Market street 
Buckle Edmund, Brandlesholme hall 
Burroine Rev. Norman (Congregational),

285 Holcombe road 
Ca*ey Rev. Mother Ellen (Lady superior),

Holly mount T N 507 
Chorlton Frank, 399 Holcombe road 
Coles Elijah, Prospect bungalow, Kirk- 

lees street

Crawshaw George M.C., M.B. Low wood,
Greenmoant

Crompton Lewis, The Nook, Bury road 
Davles Charles, 23 Sunny bower 
Davies Thoma?, 11 Sunny bower 
Day Joseph, 31 Sunny bower 
Dobs on Tom, 31 Sunny bower 
Dyson Frederick P. 263 Holcombe road,

Greenmount. T N 796 
Ellison Robert, Bury road 
Entwistle William, 233 Holcombe road 
Faulds Robert, 403 Holcombe road, Green- 

mount
Oilman Herbert, 33 Sunny bower 
Ha'stead JHenry, 407 Holcombe road,

Greenmount
Hamer Roger, 237 Holcombe road 
Hamcr Roger, 239 Holcombe road 
Harpreaves James H. 259 Holcombe road 
Harris Henry Rees, 9 Sunny bower 
Haworth John, The Beeches, Bury road

Hayes Peter, 19 Sunny bower 
Holt Thos. Brownhill, Bury rd. T N 51 <* 
Horridge John, 261 Holcombe road 
Howarth John, 13 Sunny bower 
Hoyle William J.P. Wesley place 
Hyslop Wm. M. Hope bank, Holcombe rd1 
Ingham Stewart, 25 Sunny bower 
Kershaw Joseph, Vineyards close, Green- 

mount
Leach James M.B. Holmwood. T N 92 
Moyse Thomas F., J.P. 21 Sunny bower 
Naylor Thomas Henry. Nabbs ho.Greenmnt 
Orfnerod George, 29*Chapel street 
Pears on David, Gorsey clough 
Peers Edward, Meadow head 
Ramsbottom George, 27 Sunny bower 
Heeder Rev. Hy. (vicar), The Vicarage 
Sanderford Rev. John, Beech wood,Bury rd 
Seed Rev. Frederick G. (Roman Catholic), 

Holly mount
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Sefton Norman, Lyndhurst, 340 Holcombe
road, Greenmount

Sewell Benjamin, 247 Holcombe road 
Shaw John, 243 Holcombe road 
Simpson Herbert, 15 Suuny bower 
Smith David, 241 Holcombe road 
Spencer Bev. George H. (Free Church of

England), Brook house, Holcombe road 
Studholme George Harold, 413 Holcombe

road, Greenmount
Turner Rowland, Beechwood, Bury road 
Whitehead Sydney D.Stormer hill. TN 497 
Williams Hamblet, South view, Sunny

bower
Wood Roger, 411 Holcombe road 
Woodcock Col. Frederick A. Ivy cottage,

Greenmount
COMMEBCIAL. 

Adams John William, Pack Horse P.H.
Affetside

Ainsworth Wm. farmer, Fletcher's farm 
Ashworth Alice (Mrs.), farmer, Tom hey 
Bailey & Leach, physicians & surgeons

Holmwood. T N 92 
Benson Tom, farmer, Higher & Lowe

Brooksbottoms 
Bentley John, farmer, Booth, Booth Ha

& Booth Lane farms. T N 524 
Bentley William, farmer, Sheep Gate farm 
Billings John, shopkeeper, 9 Chapel st 
Birtwistle Chas. colliery agent, 82 Royd s 
Birtwistle Herbt. news agnt. 14 Market s 
Booth Frederick, asphalter, Bury road 
Bowker Ellen (Mrs.), boot maker,

Market street 
Bradbury Walter, poultry farmer, Progres

Utility Poultry farm, Kirklees street 
Britton Samuel, shopkeeper, 37 Chapel st 
Brocklehurst George, grocer, 13 Brandies

holme road
Brooks John, farmer, Buckley closes 
Brooks Rachael (Mrs.), grocer, 60 Bury r 
Brooks Thomas, farmer, Kenyons 
Brown George & Son, plumbers, 80 Mar

ket street. T N Bury 601 
Brown Harry, tobacconist, 59 Market st 
Brown James, plumber, 92 Market street

T N Bury 831 
Brown Sarah J. (Miss), shopkeeper, 36

Holcombe road
Brown Wm. boot repairer, 245 Booth st 
Brunskill John W. printer, 175 Market s 
Butterworth Florence (Mrs.), milliner, 17

Market street 
Butterworth Mary (Mrs.), confectioner, 10

Bury road
Capstick James, baker, 28 Market street 
Carrington Albert, farmer, Jackson fold 
Chadwick John Hy. farmer, Brandlesome 
Clarke T. E. bleacher, Kirklees mills

T N Bury 149 
Clarion Club House (William Gathercole

sec.), Four acre 
Clarkson Daniel, insur. agent, 333 Bury re 
Cleave Edith (Miss), dress ma. 15 Bury re 
Colley Arthur, grocer, 167 Market street 
Collinge David, farmer, Burnt house 
Crawshaw George M.C., M.B., Ch.B.Vict 

surgeon, Low wood, Greenmount. T N 
Bury 484

Crossley Edwin, carpenter, 148 Booth st 
Dawson Charles, farmer, Meadowcroft 
Daynes Frederick, confectnr. 57 Market si 
Dearden Norman, grocer, 105 Booth street 
Duxbury Peter, farmer, Holl House farm 
Entwistle Phcebe (Mrs.), shopkpr.Affetside 
Evans Edwd. farmer,Howarth's tenements 
Fisher Thomas, joiner, Harwood road 
Fletcher James, draper, 54 Bury road 
Gilbert James, farmer, Brick barn 
Gilbert John, boot repairer, Holcombe rd

Greenmount
Gledhill Harry, confectionr. 31 Market st 
Greenhalgh's 'Laundry, laundries. T N 472 
Greenwood Edward H. butcher, 37 Market

street. T N 452
Greenwood Robert, farmer, Fowlcote 
Grime Alice Eliza (Miss), shopkeeper, 36

Market street
Grundy George, news agent, 11 Brandies- 

holme road 
Halliday Mary Ellen (Miss), shopkeeper,

38 Bury road
Halliwell Alfred, frmr. Lower Claybutts 
Hancox Ernest, farmer, Meadow Nook 
Harpreavea & Jennings Ltd.iron founders, 

Railway foundry. T A "Foundry;" 
T N 759

Harris Seymour Fk. plumber, 2 Turton rd 
Hartley Sarah Ann (Mrs.), shopkeeper,

329 Holcombe road, Oreenmount 
Hatton George, greengrocer, 2 Market st 
Haworth Margt. (Mr«.),bakpr,70 Market at 
Hayes Harry, poultry farmer, Kirklces st.

& corn merchant, 45 Market street 
Hllton Thomas, farmer, Yeoman's form 
Holding Almon. relieving offlwr for Tot- 

tington fmb-dletrlot, Bury union, Ifl 
Chapel

LANCASHIRE.
Holding Sedan, boot ma. 27 Market st 
Holding Bunah, smallware dlr.23 Chapel st 
Holt Harold, clerk to the Urban District 

Council, assistant overseer & sec. to the 
Higher Education Committee, Town hall, 
Market street

Holt Peter, plasterer, Turton road 
Horrocks James William, registrar of 

births & deaths for Tottington sub- 
district, Bury district, 47 Market street 

Horrocks John, coal mer. 1 Well Bank st 
Howard Robert & Son, blacksmiths, Spring

Vale street 
Howard John, farmer, Dowery farm,

Greenmount 
Howard Nathan,

Holly street
Howarth Brothers & Co. Limited, hard­ 

ware merchants, Spring Vale street 
Howarth James, confectnr. 38 Market st 
Howarth James, farmer, Asthmas close

& Partridge P.H.

TOTTINGTON. 1180

teacher of music, 33

Ormerod George, collector to the Urban
District Council & collector of poor
rates, Town hall, Market street 

Ormerod George, florist, 31 Chapel street.
T N Bury 250

Ormerod James, shopkpr. 167 Booth street 
Ormerod Tom, painter, see Lomax &

Ormerod .mi j 
Pearson Charles, confectioner, 4 Turton rd 
Pearson David, farmer, Boger lane 
Phillipson Daisy (Miss), milliner, 72

Market street 
Pilkington Stanley, Bull's Head P.H.

Greenmount 
Platt Fannie (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 211

Scobell street 
Potter James William, farmer, Stormer

Hill closes
Pratt Thos. farmer,Whitebirk, Greenmount 
Price Arthur G. farmer, Tonge fold 
Bawsthorne Laurence, farmer, Huntfold,

How^tirwUHam; confectnr. 20 Market .t j Heed Wilham fruiterer 23 Market^street 
Hoyle William & Co. Limited, cotton I Beeves Edwd fried fish dlr 34 Market st

manufacturers, Spring mill. T N 203 I Bigby James, farmer, Spen Leach 
Hoyle Geo. Edwd. beer retlr. 262 Bury rd Biley J. Heap, _
HUcfS,ebSe Dr^ * 8°n8' PlnmlKr8' 335 ^ Ko^rVImLTurner 4 port- 

Isherwood Edmund, tea merchant, 16 Old
Doctors 

Isherwood George R. insurance agent, 311
Holcombe road

Isherwood John, confectnr. 62 Market st 
Isherwood John, dentist, 49 Market street
Jackson Bros, corn dealers, 256 Bury rd 
Jackson James, builder, 149 Holcombe rd 
Jebb Ethel (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 94 Watling

street, Affetside 
Kenyon James & Son Limited, cotton

manufrs. Glen mill. T N Bury 25 
Kenyon Frank, cabinet ma. Spring Vale st 
Kenyon Lawrence, surveyor & sanitary

master, 12 Market street 
Round Alfred, farmer, Walshaw lane 
Roundell John, poultry farmer,Kirklees st

•r» • i * f i..!*a d.i. Aaalor 3d.9'Itowles Richard, 
Holcombe road,

fried fish dealer, 
Greenmount

Rydings Alfred, painter, 65 Bury road
Rydings Mary A. (Mrs.),shpkpr.65 Bury rd 
Rydings Wilfred, painter, see Lomax &

Rydings
Saunders Albt. fried fish dlr. 1 Harwood st 
Schofield Bertie Singleton, fried fish

dealer, 66 Market street 
Scholes Joseph & Sons Ltd. finishers,

Stormer Hill works. T N 113
inspector to the Urban District Council, Scholes Robert, baker, 63 Market street 
88 Market street | Sharpies Annie (Mrs.) C.M.B. midwife,

229 Booth street
Shaw William, hair dresser, Green mount 
Shawcross George, shopkeeper,331 Bury rd

Kenyon Mary (Mrs.), dress maker, 163
Booih street 

King John Ernest, farmer, Old Bates
King William, chimney sweeper, 30 Kirk­ 

lees street 
King Wm. jun. plumber, Spring Vale st
Kirkpatrick Charles, clerk to the Totting­ 

ton Sub-Committee of Lancashire Local 
Pension Committee, Town hall,Market st

Knowles Andrew & Sons Ltd. coal mer­ 
chants (Charles Birtwistle, agent), Rail­ 
way yard

Knowles S. & Co. Ltd. calico printers, 
Tottington mills. T N 156 Bury

Lancashire & Yorkshire Bank Limited 
(sub-branch) (William Alfred Brown, 
manager) (open mon. wed. & fri. 10 
a.m. to 3 p.m.), 26 Market street; draw 
on Westminster Bank Limited, 41 Loth- 
hu:-y, London E C 2

Leach James M.B., Ch.B., L.M.S.S.A. 
Lond. physician & surgeon (firm, Bailey 
& Leach), Holmwood. T N Bury 92

Leach Willoughby, greengrocer, 358 Hol­ 
combe road, Greenmount

Lloyd Evan W. undertaker, 305 Bury road
Lomax & Ormerod, painters, 235 Booth st
Lomax & Rydings, painters, Bury road
Lomax Edward, builder, 136 Market street 

& Spring Vale street. T N Bury 369 
max Mary (Mrs.), confctr. 247 Bury

Lomax Mary Ann (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 21 
Market street

Lomax Wm. Hy. cycle dlr. 33 Turton rd
Longworth John & Son Limited, cotton 

manfrs. Brookhouse mill. T N Bury 274 
/ongworth Keziah (Mrs.), draper, 30 Mar­ 
ket street 

ionsdale William, farmer, Croitchley fold
Marsden Thomas H. wheelwright, Lee- 

mans hill, Bury road
>farshall Harry, carting contractor, 158 

Booth street & Bury road. T N 481
Meakes Albt. G. photographer,132 Bury rd
Mercer William & Thomas, farmers, 

Stormer hill
Mills Ernest J., 

the Education 
Market street

lills Henry, shuttle maker, 
shuttle works. T N 779

ifilton Arthur, baker, 2 Chapel street
Morpan Jamep, wholesale grocer, 181a 

Market street

Simpson Herbert, chemist, 68 Market st 
Simpson Thomas, farmer, Sunny bower 
Simpson William, shopkpr. 94 Bury road 
Smith Alfred, farmer, Hunt's farm, Har­ 

wood road
Smith James, butcher, 25 Market street 
Smith John Andrew, grocer, 29 Market at
Smith 

post
Margaret Ann (Mrs.), grocer, & 
office, Holcombe road, Greenmount

M.A., O.B.E. clerk to 
Authority, Town hall,

Victoria

fun-ay Alice Anne (Mrs.), maternity 
nurse, 221 Booth street 

Murray Joseph, Printers' Arms P.H. 1 & 
3 Chapel street

Futtall John, Robin Hood P.H. Market st 
^uttall Wm. fried flan dealer, 206 Burr rd 
Nnttall Wm. tinsmith, Spring Vale street 

e Richard, farmer, Gareide hey

Smith Moses, butcher, 67 Bury road 
Smith Robert, farmer, Higher fold 
Smith Squire, watch maker, 7 Chapel st 
Smith William A. motor engineer, 126

Market street. T N Bury 390 
Stafford Elizabeth (Mrs.), draper, 25a,

Market street
Stephenson John Thos. farmer, Whittles 
Stirzaker Edward W. tailor, 171 Market et 
Sutherton Alfred, farmer, Brook house 
Suthurst Harold, painter, 245 Holcombe rd 
Sutton Robert S. chemist, 33 Market st 
Taylor Joshua, farmer, Top-o'-th'-Brow 
Taylor Mary (Mrs.), farmer, Lower Buck- 

ley farm
Taylor William, baker, 40 Holly street 
Tebay John, farmer, Top-o'-th'-Heights 
Telford Hubert, shopkpr. 322 Bury road 
Thornton Albert, boot repairer, Leaman's

hill, Bury road 
Thornton Thomas, Nailor's Green P.H.

Greenmount
Thorpe Fredk. P. watch ma. 36 Holly st 
Tottington Conservative Club (Joseph

Castick, sec.), Kirklees street 
Tottington District Co-operative Society 

Limited (William Lonsdale, sec.), 
Market street & branches 

Tottington Liberal Club (Herbert Har-
greaves, sec.), Market street 

Tottington Picturedrome (Miss M. Alien,
proprietress), Market street 

Trickett James, shopkeeper, 203 Bury rd 
Turner Samuel, coal mer. Railway station 
Turner William, grocer, 40 & 51 Brad-

shaw road, Four Lane ends 
Walley Joseph, hair dresser, 7 Market st 
Warburton Ellen (Mrs.), farmer,Watling st 
Warburton James, beer retlr.314 Turton rd 
Warburton John Wm. farmer, Watling st 
Warburton Sarah Ann (Miss), shopkeeper,

Four Lane ends 
Warburton Thomas, furniture dealer, 4 &

6 Markft street. T N Bury 622 
White Robert, beer retailor, 1 Turton rd 
Whitehead Ernest, shopkpr. 8 Laurel st
Whittaker Fred, painter, 
Whittaker Hugh, farmer, 
Whittaker Lawrence W.

combe road 
Whowell Charles Ltd.

Brooks. T N 201

117 Turton road 
Ferns farm 
painter, 4 Hoi- 

bleachers. Two 
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1190 TOTTINGTON.

Yates Eliza (Mrs.), shopkpr. 15 Chapel st

WALSHAW.
Heyes Henry, The Bungalow 
Bolt Mrs. Lower Walshaw hall 
Kenyon James J.P. Walshaw hall 
.Talbot Rev. John Day B.A. (vicar), The 

Vicarage
COMMEBCIAL.

Ashworth Enos, fried fish dlr.48 Church st

LANCASHIRE.
. District Co-operative Society Ltd.

Bank street
Cranshaw James, hair dresser, Bank st 
Entwistle Isaac, shopkeeper, 11 Hall st 
Fairclough John, dentist, 56 Church st.

(letters through Tottington) 
Fletcher Dora & Emily (Misses), dress

makers, 71 Church street 
Goodfellow John, fruiterer, 16 Hall street 
Haslam Fred, painter, 67 Church street 
Hill Robert, beer retailer, 9 Hall street 
Holt James, fried fish dealer, The Hut 
Horrocks Charles, bricklayer, Joy cottage

[KELLY'S
Lord James A. Victoria P.H
Pearson Priscilla (Miss), shopkeeper, 22

Hall street 
Ramsden Maria (Mrs.), grocer 6, & news

agent 8, Bank street 
Smith Samuel, butcher, 22 Bank street 
Spencer Martha (Miss), confT. 2 Hall st 
Tbomason James, draper, 20 Bank street 
Tottington & Wool fold Manufacturing Co.

Ltd. (L. Holt, sec) 
Walshaw Conservative & Unionist Club

(Walter Brown, sec.), 28 Bank street 
Yates Jesse, White Horse P.H

; HIG-HEB E1TD, formerly a township, I 1894, been merged into the newly constituted civil parishes 
tne provisions of the Local Government Act, | of Haslingden, Bamsbottom and Bawtenstall.

WINEWALL is a hamlet with a chapel belonging to the
Inghamites.

Sexton (St. Mary's), Thomas Ellis Walker, 10 Hollin wall.
Post, M. O., T. & T. E. D. Office, Trawden Forest. William 

Henry Stevenson, sub-postmaster. Letters through Colne
Post, M. 0. & T. Office, Cotton Tree. James Gott, sub-post­ 

master. Letters arrive from Colne

URBAN DISTBICT COUNCIL.
Meets at the Council office, on the last thursday in each 

month, at 2.30 p.m.

Members.
Chairman, Samuel Howard. 

Vice-Chairman, Henry Driver.

TOXTETH PABK, eee Kelly's (Gore's) Directory of Liverpool. 
TBAWDEN is a village and township, part of which was 
formed into an ecclesiastical parish Aug. 5, 1845, from the 
civil parish of Whalley; it is 2 miles south-east from Colne 
station on the Accrington and Skipton section of the London, 
Midland and Scottish railway, 6 from Burnley and 12 from 
Skipton, in the parliamentary borough of Nelson and Colne, 
Colne petty sessional division, higher division of Blackburn 
hundred, Burnley union, Colne county court district, rural 
deanery of Burnley, archdeaconry of Blackburn and diocese of 
Manchester. The township adopted the Local Government 

-Act, 1858, March 10, 1863, but under the provisions of the 
^Act of 1894 it is now governed by an Urban District Council. 
The church of St. Mary, erected in 1845, is a building of stone 
in the Early English style, consisting of chancel, nave and 
an embattled western tower containing one bell : there are 
blast es to Mrs. Catherine Humfrey, of Carry Bridge, near 
Colne, d. Id55; the Bev. Thomas Craven Humfrey, 30 years 
vicar of the parish, d. 1875, and his wife Mary, d. 1872; the 
stained east window is a memorial to Mrs*. Mary Humfrey : 
the reredos of Caen stone was given in 1876 by Canon A. T. 
Parker M.A. rector of Burnley : the church was reseated and 
improved in 1882 at a cost of £600, and the whole of the 
windows were re-glazed in 1885, at a cost of £100 : there are 
sittings for 500 persons. The register dates from the year 
1840. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £187, with 
residence, in the gift of the Crown and the Bishop of Man­ 
chester alternately, and held since 1915 by the Rev. Hugh 
Paul Dempsey M.A. of Magdalen College, Oxford. There are 
Wesleyan Methodist, Free Gospel and Primitive Methodist 
chapels. Facing the Wesleyan chapel is a stone memorial to 
the men connected with the district who fell in the Great 
War, 1914-18. There is a cemetery, formerly belonging to 
the Society of Friends, and dating from 1688, but opened 
about 1858 for the use of Dissenters generally: it is now the 
property of the Primitive Methodist Trust. The Duke of 
Buecleuch K.T. is lord of the manor. Alfred, William and 
Richard Sagar esqrs. and John Hopkinspn esq. are the chief 
landowners. The soil is clay; the subsoil, clay and rock, and 
the land is principally in pasture. The area of the civil parish 
and Urban District is 6,785 acres of land and 30 of water; 
rateable value, £12,238; the population in 1921 was 2,762; 
Of the ecclesiastical parish in 1911, 2,202.

Joseph Wilkinson Bannister 
John William Barritt 
Charles Blackburn 
Hopkinson Blackburn 
Arthur Broadhead

Bev. Hugh Paul Dempsey M.A 
Rennie Tillotson Pickles 
Benjamin Riley 
Simpson Spencer 
William Windle

Officers.
Clerk, Thomas Henry Burr, Keigbley, Yorks
Treasurer, James Lascellea Wildman, Branch of Bank of Liver­ 

pool & Martins Ltd. Colne
Medical Officer of Health, George Skeen M.B., C.M.Aberdeen, 

Eeighley road, Colne
Surveyor & Inspector of Nuisances, Joseph Henry Tatham,. 27 

Lane house
Collector, Hehry Lee, Slack Royde
Collector of Water Rate, Henry Pickles, 44 Church street

Assistant Overseer, William Henry Smith, 8 Church street
County Council School, built in 1910, at a cost of £10,000, for 

710 children; Owen Sagar, master; Miss Betsy Tillotson, 
infants' mistress

Carriers to Colne. H. E. Marshall & Sons, Church street, & 
John Marshall, Aspley grove, daily

TRAWDEN.
PRIVATE RESIDENTS. 

Bannister John Thomas, Oak leigh 
Dempsey Rev. Hugh Paul M.A. (vicar),

The Vicarage 
Hopkinson John, Trawden hall

COMMERCIAL.
Alton Alexander, farmer, Nichol house 
Atkinson Wm. farmer, Old Joseph's farm 
Bainbridge Thos. Miles, farmer, Copy ho 
Bank of Liverpool A Martins Ltd. (sub- 

branch) (James Lascelles Wildman, 
manager) (open mon. tues. wed. & 
thurs. 11.30 a.m. to 1.30 p.m.; fri. 10 
a.m. to 1 p.m.; sat. 9.30 to 11 a.m.); 
draw on London office, 68 Lombard st. 
London E C 3 

Bannister Ernest, picture framer, 11
Dean street- 

Bannister Feather, fishmonger, Dean st 
Bannister Hy. W. manufacturer of cotton 

goods,Forest shed. T N 37 Cotton Tree 
Bannister Jesse, manufacturer of cotton 

goods, Black Carr mill. T N 13 Cotton 
Tree

Bannister Joseph, frmr. Lower Stanstead 
Bannister Joseph, joiner & builder 
Bannister Walter, manufacturer of cotton

good?, Brook shed
Barker Harry, farmer, Great Thorn edge 
Barrett John William, grocer 
Binns James, baker
Binns James, coal dealer, 29 Lane house 
Birtwistle Dennis, coal dlr. 47 Lane house 
Birtwi=tle Harper, farmer, Lane house 
Blackburn Albert, farmer, Peter laithe

New laithe
Blackburn Fred, fanner, New laithe 
Blackburn John Alfred, farmer, Far

Wanless
Blackburn Joseph, farmer, Mean moss 
Blackburn Rennie, farmer, Hall house 
Blackburn Sih ester, shopkeeper 
Blackburn Willie, farmer, Middle Bead

shaw head
Bland Wilfred, baker 
Bolton Arthur, coal dealer, 20 Lane house

Jolton Willie, refresh, rms. Skipton rd 
Bracewell Ivy (Mrs.), draper, 16 Church st 
Bracewell William, farmer, Lumb laithe 
Burrows Fred, butcher 
Burrows John Hy. shopkpr. 1 Chapel st 
Butler William & Geo. farmers, Wycollar 
Butler Benj. farmer. Little Thorn edge 
Chadwiok Thomas & William, boot makers 
Chadwiok Willie, butcher 
Clark Stephen, farmer, Low Oak bank 
Colne Building Society (8. Dodgeon, sec) j 
Deighton Frank, farmer, Great hill 
Dobson Schofield, tailor, 6 Skipton road
DRIVER & CO. textile engineers &

mill furnishers, Riverside works 
Driver Ellis, farmer, Brink ends 
Edmondson John, farmer, Alderhurst 
Ellis John, shopkeeper 
Ell wood Joseph, farmer, Bough gap 
Farnworth Cecil, grocer & confectioner,

40 Skipton road 
Gott John, farmer, Job lane 
Gott John, farmer, Lodge Moss farm 
Gott William, farmer, Higher Stnnstead 
Hartley J. & J. manufacturers of cotton 

goods, Forest shed. T N 11 Cotton Tree 
Hartley James, farmer. Seghole 
Hartley Jane (Mrs.), shopkpr.2 Skipton rd 
Hartley John William, Oldams Arms P.H.

Wycollar
Heap Robert, farmer, Draugh gate 
Holgate William manufr. of cotton goods,

Black Carr mill. T N 14 Cotton Tree 
Hollin Hall Manufacturing Co. Limited, 

manufacturers of cotton goods, Hollin 
Hall mill. T N 33 Cotton Tree 

Holmes Stanley, clopger 
Horsfall Marpt. (Mre.), frmr. Slack laithe 
Hopkinson, Trawden Limited, manufac­ 

turers of cotton goods, Black Carr. T N 
52 Colne

Hoyle Herbt. frmr. Parson lee, Wycollar 
Lancaster Seth, teacher of violon­ 

cello, Wycollar hall, Wycollar 
Laycock Henry, farmer, Wanless 
Lee Henry, collector to the Urban Dis­ 

trict Council, Slack Royde

Lunt Richard, shoeing smith 
Marshall H. E. & Sons, carriers 
Marshall Henry Ellis, laundry, Scar top 
Marshall John, carrier & cartage con­ 

tractor, Aspley grove
Martin Joseph, farmer, Bank ho. Wycollar 
Mitchell Joseph, caterer, 20 Lane house 
Multi-Color Dyers (1920) Ltd. Lodge Holme

mills. T N Cotton Tree 34 
Nicholson Geo. farmr.Low Beadshaw head 
Ogden Albt. tchr. of music, 3 Skipton rd 
Parker John, farmer, Foster leap 
Pickles Richard & Co. manufacturers of 

cotton goods, Forest shed. T N 98 
Cotton Tree 

Pickles Amos (Mrs.), haker 
Pickles Fred, farmer, White Lee 
Pickles Henry, water rate collector to

Urban District Council, 44 Church st 
Pickles John Henry, farmer, Naze End 
Pickles Wm. Edwd. farmer, Lodge hill 
Pollard James, frmr. Higher Beech head 
Preston John, farmer, Rings farm 
Preston Samuel, farmer, Little moss 
Ridehalgh Harry, Rock hotel, Church st 
Riley Robert & Co. manufacturers of 

cotton goods, Black Carr mill. T N 12 
Cotton Tree

Robinson George, farmer, Bracken hill,
Wycollar

Robinson Thomas, farmer, Well head 
Robinson Truman, school attendance

officer, Hopkineon terrace 
Ru?hton Edmund, farmer, New laithe 
Scott James, hair dresser, Ash street 
Sedgwick William, farmer, Eaven rock,

Wycollar
ShutMeworth Jn. Thos. painter.Skipton rd 
Smith Heaton, fanner, Prospect house 
Smith Randolph, farmer, Buttocks laithe 
Smith William, farmer, Cowfield 
Smith William Henry, grocer tt, assistant

overseer, Church street 
Snowden Thomas, farmer, Alderbarrow 
Snowden Tom, farmer, Spring cottage 
Spencer Herbert, farmer, Dent house 
Spencer James T. farmer, Blackhead 
Starkey William, farmer, Goilford Oloogh


